
Property / Regeneration Briefing 
In line with advice from HM Government, the council is now holding only essential 
meetings. This plays a part in helping us to maintain the safety of the public, staff and 
councillors. These meetings are being held electronically and, unfortunately, you will 
not be able to attend them.   

However, the City Mayor has asked that, as far as possible, there is still public 
involvement and input into the decision-making process. 

Therefore, should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed, 
which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, by 
sending an email to the address at the bottom of this agenda. 

Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place.

Decision notices or minutes from meetings will be available as appropriate. Should you 
wish to view decisions taken meetings of the Cabinet and other Lead Member 
Briefings, they will be available for viewing on the council website - 
https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx

Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on 
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus

DATE: Monday, 24 August 2020

TIME: 11.00 am

VENUE: Microsoft Teams Meeting

AGENDA

THE MEETING CAN BE ACCESSED VIA THE FOLLOWING LINK:
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3ameeting_NzAyMzAxZjEtZWM0ZC00NjczLWJlMGYtYzI2N
DgxMzI2ZmE3%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268
c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-
3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-
938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  Items for Decision - Part 1 (Open to the Public) 

3a DFT and TfGM Emergency Active Travel Funds (Pages 1 - 8)

4  Briefing/Information Items 

Public Document Pack

https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx
https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus


The following items are for the purpose of providing members of the 
public with all relevant information on the respective matter, other 
than those elements, which in accordance with the relevant sections 
of the Local Government Act 1972, remain confidential and require 
that any arising decisions are taken in Part 2 of the agenda:

4a Land at Crompton Street, Walkden and Highfield Road, Little Hulton (Pages 9 - 20)

4b Salford Royal The Bevan Intermediate Care Unit (IMCU) (Pages 21 - 32)

5  Exclusion of the Public 

6  Items for Decision - Part 2 (Closed to the Public) 

6a Land at Crompton Street, Walkden and Highfield Road, Little Hulton (Pages 33 - 36)

6b Salford Royal The Bevan Intermediate Care Unit (IMCU) (Pages 37 - 38)

Contact Officer: Mike Relph, Senior Democratic Services Advisor
Tel No: 0161 793 3013
E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


ITEM NO.

___________________________________________________________________

REPORT OF

THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE

TO  

PROPERTY AND REGENERATION BRIEFING

ON

24 AUGUST 2020

___________________________________________________________________

TITLE: DFT and TfGM Emergency Active Travel (EAT) Funds 

___________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the City Mayor: 

1. Notes the £1.53 million of grant funding available to Salford City Council for 
walking and cycling interventions as part of the Covid-19 response.

2. Approves the scheme proposals, which will be developed further in 
consultation with the appropriate Lead Members and the Walking & Cycling 
Champion.

3. Approves spend of the grant awarded to Salford City Council.
___________________________________________________________________

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The Covid-19 pandemic has fundamentally changed the way that people are travelling 
across Greater Manchester. Public transport capacity has been severely reduced and 
walking and cycling has significantly increased.  Recent data shows that one million 
cycling trips are now being made each week across Greater Manchester, an increase 
of 34% on pre lockdown levels.

Salford City Council has secured approximately £1.53 million of funding to implement 
measures that will support these trips and help to enforce appropriate social 
distancing.  The report details the sources of the grant, the deadlines for spend, 
proposed types of interventions and delivery progress to date.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3a



___________________________________________________________________

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: (Open to the Public)

N/a.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS (NOT OPEN TO THE PUBLIC)

N/a.
___________________________________________________________________

KEY DECISION:  

Yes
___________________________________________________________________

DETAILS: 

1.0 Background

1.1 Walking and cycling has increased significantly as a result of the Covid-19 
pandemic with cycling increasing by 34% across Greater Manchester.  Salford 
City Council has received grant funding to deliver a range of interventions to 
support these walking and cycling trips.

2.0 Grant Funding awarded to Salford City Council

2.1 Salford City Council has secured £1,532,073 of grant from a combination of the 
GM Mayor’s Challenge Fund (MCF) and tranche 1 of the DfT’s Emergency 
Active (EAT) Travel Grant to implement walking and cycling measures. The 
detail of these funding sources is described below.

MCF EAT 

2.2 GM Mayor Andy Burnham has allocated £0.5 million to each district in Greater 
Manchester to implement measures that facilitate social distancing and 
encourage more walking and cycling trips.  The funding covers a broad range 
of interventions including barrier removal, signage and temporary infrastructure.  
It is for districts to determine how best to utilise this funding to deliver the 
maximum benefits. TfGM have not specified a deadline for spend of the MCF 
grant, however officers are working on a delivery programme to fully utilise the 
grant by the end March 2021.

2.3 Salford City Council used the Commonplace online consultation tool to engage 
with residents in June 2020 through the #safestreetssavelives campaign, and 
received approximately 4,500 comments and suggestions for walking and 
cycling interventions.  Officers have been working through these to determine 
a comprehensive programme of schemes and to date we have committed 

Page 2



£110,000 of costs, approximately 22% of the programme and delivered the 
following from the MCF EAT grant,

 2.0 km of additional walking and cycling routes including Irwell Street, 
Blackfriars Street and Liverpool Street:

 Cleared barriers including overgrown vegetation and blockages at 12 locations
 across the city; and
 Provided 250 “keep your distance” citywide.

The MCF funding has enabled Salford to advance the delivery of some projects 
within our grant funded programmes such as MCF and deliver benefits much 
earlier to residents.

Further work is ongoing in full consultation with the Lead Members and the Walking & Cycling Champion to develop additional schemes along the key themes of barrier removal and infrastructure provision. Commonplace will be used to report our progress to residents and stakeholders listing all the interventions completed and seeking feedback on their success. This feature will be launched by mid August 2020. 

DfT Tranche 1 EAT 

2.4 In addition to the local MCF funding, the DfT has a national EAT programme. 
This programme has been phased into two tranches, and GM was recently 
awarded £3.17 million in tranche 1.  Salford City Council secured £1.032 million 
of this tranche 1 funding (34%) of the total award to GM.

2.5 The DfT Tranche 1 funding is limited in its scope and is only available for 
specific interventions that reallocate road space to walking and cycling such as  
pop up cycle lanes and point closures / modal filters. The DfT also require 
authorities to deliver the interventions by mid October 2020.

2.6 The tranche 1 schemes were selected as they advanced existing programmes 
of work such as the MCF, for which consultation and engagement with 
residents, stakeholders and members had already been undertaken. This 
allowed interventions such as modal filters to be implemented quickly and 
trialled in advance of the main programme.

2.7 A summary of Salford’s confirmed DfT tranche 1 schemes and current delivery 
progress is shown below. The schemes below had been estimated to cost 
£1.032 million at the time of the grant submission.  As the scheme designs are 
progressed the actual costs are being confirmed. Officers will work with TfGM 
and the funders to fully utilise Salford’s grant allocation.  All schemes are 
scheduled for completion by the DfT deadline.

Salford’s DfT Tranche 1 EAT programme

DfT 
Tranche 

Scheme 
Type 

Scheme Name Description Delivery 
Progress 

Page 3



1 Pop up 
cycle lane 

Blackfriars 
Street 

Blackfriars St become 
amended to one way for 
traffic outbound, between St 
Mary's Parsonage and 
Chapel Street. Enabling the 
inbound lane to be 
established for cycles and 
pedestrians only.

Scheme 
Complete 

1 Bus gate Chapel Street 
East / Victoria 
Bridge Street 

Introduction of a bus gate on 
Chapel Street, after the 
junction with Victoria Bridge 
Street, restricting general 
traffic travelling north east 
bound towards Victoria 
Street. 

Scheme 
completion 
scheduled for 
end of 
September 
2020.

1 Pop up 
cycle lane 

Chapel Street 
East 

Introduction of protected cycle 
lanes in both directions along 
Chapel Street in the city 
centre.

Scheme 
completion 
scheduled for 
mid 
September 
2020.

1 Modal 
Filters / 
Point 
Closures 

Trinity and 
Islington 
Neighbourhoods

Implementation of 7 Modal 
Filters to trial proposals for 
filtered neighbourhoods as 
part of the MCF City Centre 
Bee Network.

Scheme 
Complete 

1 Pop up 
cycle lane 

Oldfield Road 
Corridor 

Introduction of light 
segregation cycle lanes.

Scheme 
completion 
scheduled for 
end of August 
2020.

1 Pop up 
cycle lane 

Liverpool Street Provision of light segregation 
cycle route

Scheme 
completion 
scheduled for 
end of August 
2020.

TOTAL Tranche 1 funding available to Salford £1.032 
million 

DfT Tranche 2 EAT 

Page 4



2.7 Following the tranche 1 award the DfT have released further EAT funding and  
GM is able to submit a further bid of up to £12.7 million.  The bid will be 
coordinated by TfGM and be based around the following themes.

 Access to the Regional Centre 
 Access to Town Centres
 Active neighbourhoods
 Complementary measures (e.g cycle parking)

2.8 The tranche 2 bid is currently being developed and a further update will be 
provided at a future Property & Regeneration Briefing when the award is 
confirmed.

4.0 Delivery / Procurement route 

4.1 The City Council will utilise Highway Services to deliver the works within the 
MCF and DfT EAT programmes. Where there is insufficient capacity within 
Highways services the works will be procured in line with contractual standing 
orders.

5.0 Recommendations and next steps

5.1 That the City Mayor:

1. Notes the £1.53 million of grant funding available to Salford City Council for 
walking and cycling interventions as part of the Covid-19 response.

2. Approves the scheme proposals, which will be developed further in 
consultation with the appropriate Lead Members and the Walking & Cycling 
Champion.

3. Approves spend of the grant awarded to Salford City Council.

__________________________________________________________________

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

 Salford 2025, a Modern Global City.
 Transport in Salford 2025.

___________________________________________________________________

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

The schemes will been designed in accordance with highways design standards and 
Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) legislation.
___________________________________________________________________

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Low – The Highways Design team are experienced in the 
design of schemes of this nature and delivery will be undertaken through Highway 
Services who have a successful track record of delivering schemes. In addition the 
scheme is to be entirely funded via external grant funding.

Page 5



___________________________________________________________________

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   This schemes are to be funded from grant as described in 
section 2 of the report.  The City Council will claim any grant funding in arrears on a 
quarterly basis. 
___________________________________________________________________

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Submitted by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323
Date: 29.07.20

Comments:  Where the works and services are being delivered by the Council’s 
internal Highways officers, there are no legal implications as such. Where any external 
support is required to be commissioned, this should be done in accordance with the 
Council’s Contractual Standing Orders and the Public Contracts Regulations (where 
applicable) failing which the decision may be subject to legal challenge.

Where a Traffic Regulation Order may be required to support the various schemes, 
provided the works and procedures are carried out in accordance with the relevant 
statutory requirements, which would include the consideration of any objections to the 
proposed TRO, there should be no adverse legal implications.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Submitted by: Natalie Birchall
Date: 29/07/2020

Comments: The estimated costs in this report, £1.53 m will be externally funded from 
the Mayors Challenge Fund and DfT EAT grants awarded to the council. All claims will 
be made via quarterly returns to TFGM. 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by:  Christine Flisk
Date: 29/07/2020

Comments:  The report outlines that Highway Services will deliver the schemes 
wherever possible subject to capacity.  However, the procurement team will support 
Highway services to procure goods and services, as required, compliantly in line with 
the council’s CSO’s to deliver value for money.
___________________________________________________________________

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: The schemes will encourage more walking ad 
cycling in line with the councils climate change aspirations.
___________________________________________________________________

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/a.
___________________________________________________________________

CONTACT OFFICER:    Lee Evans                                 TEL. NO. 0161 793 3801

Page 6



___________________________________________________________________

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): All
___________________________________________________________________

Page 7



P
age 8



1

Part 1: – Item No. 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE  

TO THE PROPERTY AND REGENERATION BRIEFING

FOR APPROVAL ON 24th August 2020

TITLE: Land at Crompton Street, Walkden & Highfield Road, Little 
Hulton

RECOMMENDATIONS:  
The City Mayor is recommended to:

1. Note the response to the advertising of the intention to dispose of an area of 
public open space at Crompton Street, Walkden under Section 123(1), (2a) of 
the Local Government Act 1972 and that the comments made can be addressed 
and mitigated through the planning process.

2. Subject to the above and the grant of planning consent, approve the disposal of 
the subject sites, one of which is currently public open space, to Great Places 
for terms of 250 years in addition to the other terms and conditions as set out in 
the Part II report to deliver 20 No supported housing units and 12no social 
rented units.

3. Approve the terms and entering into a release of restrictive covenants and 
mines and minerals reservations with Peel Land and Property on the agreed 
terms set out in the  Part II report.

4. Authorise the Shared Legal Service to complete all necessary documentation 
and to take all steps which are required to give effect to the above 
recommendations.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

The Strategic Director People is seeking to support the proposal to develop two 
supported housing schemes in partnership with Great Places Housing Group. 
Proposed sites for the two schemes have been identified at Crompton Street, Walkden 
and Highfield Road, Little Hulton.

Page 9

Agenda Item 4a



2

The schemes are proposed to provide accommodation, support and regulated care 
services for two different learning disability client groups.

The Strategic Director People, the Lead Member for Adult Services and Lead Member 
for Housing support the proposals put forward by Great Places, which will result in 
anticipated overall cost reduction for the service provision.  In addition, 12 social rented 
homes will be delivered, providing an estimated £42,000 per annum in Council Tax 
receipts and circa £210,000 of New Homes Bonus.

The intention to dispose of an area of Public Open Space, namely the land at Crompton 
Street, has been publicised in a newspaper circulating in the area and a number of 
representations have been received from local residents. Issues raised include the loss 
of green space, historic flooding, highway safety/parking, anti-social behaviour and 
noise and air pollution. In terms of addressing the representations made for the 
Crompton Street site, the site is not within the Council’s Greenspace Strategy SPD and 
is classed as informal open space with Oakwood Park and Whittle Street play area 
being the nearest alternative formal greenspaces available. The impact of the issues 
raised by residents can be further mitigated through the planning process therefore 
approval is sought to dispose of the Public Open Space.

In summary, subject to Great Places securing planning permission and the City Council 
entering into a release of the restrictive covenant and rights at Crompton Street, 
Walkden, approval is sought for the disposal of the subject sites to Great Places on 
the provisionally agreed terms.  Further details of the terms and conditions are set out 
in the Part II report however the net capital receipt to the Council on release of the 
covenant and reservation restrictions would be £260,700 for the two sites.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

KEY DECISION: YES 

DETAILS:

1.1 The Strategic Director People is seeking to support the proposal to develop two 
supported housing schemes in partnership with Great Places Housing Group.   

1.2 Two sites have now been identified as shown edged red at Appendix A, both of 
which are in the freehold ownership of the City Council. The first site is located 
at Crompton Street, Walkden and the second at Highfield Road, Little Hulton. A 
third site, off Holyoake Road, Walkden, was originally identified as a potential 
location but has now been discounted due to site constraints and 

Page 10



3

representations received from residents relating to the loss of public open 
space.

  
1.3 The Crompton Street site is subject to a restrictive covenant and mines and 

mineral rights which requires a release to be obtained from Peel Land & 
Property to permit the development to proceed.

1.4 The schemes are proposed to provide accommodation, support and regulated 
care services for two different learning disability client groups.

1.5 The Crompton Street proposal will offer places for 14 people with complex 
needs in 12 accommodation units. Homes are designed to be flexible and 
adaptable, with 4 of them being wheelchair accessible.  This proposal will offer 
support to people who are currently in less suitable supported housing, to those 
young people who are in transition and also to new users whose needs will be 
supported by this type of accommodation and care service. 

1.6 Great Places will also be creating an additional 5no. 2/3 bedroom houses for 
social rent on this site, to be allocated to those on the housing register, one of 
which will be developed to a higher accessible housing standard.

1.7 The Highfield Road proposal will offer places for 8 people with severe and 
complex learning disabilities, autism or both. The accommodation will comprise 
shared housing and 2 self-contained flats. The units will be allocated to Salford 
residents who are currently placed ‘out of area’ who will be more effectively 
supported in Salford. This approach to repatriate Salford residents is part of the 
Council’s strategic approach aimed at reducing the need for further out of area 
placements. The Highfield Road proposal will also provide capacity to be able 
to accommodate crisis placements as and when these occur.

1.8 Great Places will also be creating an additional 7no. 2/3 bedroom houses for 
social rent on this site for those on the housing register with a number of them 
being wheelchair accessible and to a Lifetime Home standard

Page 11



4

1.9 Summary of the proposals:

Crompton Street Service User 
Group

No. of Apartments Total no. of 
Service Users

1 Bed Apartment Complex Needs 10 10
2 Bed Apartment Complex Needs 2 4

Rental Type No. of Units Total no. Persons
2/3 Bed Houses Social Rent 5 22
Total 17 36

Highfield Road Service User 
Group

No. of Apartments Total no. of 
Service Users

Shared House Learning 
Disabilities

6 6

Self-Contained 
Apartment

Learning 
Disabilities

2 2

Rental Type No. of Units Total no. Persons
2/3 Bed Houses Social Rent 7 32
Total 15 40

Grand Total 32 76

1.10 Both proposals will be designed to specifically meet the accommodation and 
service needs for the two client groups, with the design proposals being 
developed with input from the Learning Disability Service working with Housing 
Strategy and Enabling, Strategic Commissioning (Care) and Great Places 
Housing Group.

1.11 The two scheme proposals are part of Salford’s strategic approach to deliver 
improvements in service quality and customer experience, providing care closer 
to home in schemes integrated into the local community and to deliver value for 
money in the provision of housing and care solutions in Salford. The proposals 
are designed to provide care and support at the right level to meet need and in 
the least restrictive way, whilst being affordable, adaptable, flexible (including 
wheelchair accessible) and efficient. 

1.12 The additional creation of 12no. 2/3 bedroom houses for social rent will help 
deliver much needed accommodation to those on the housing register.  There 
is also an option for 5 of these units to be purchased by Derive, subject to Board 
approval.  Great Places have agreed to sign up to the Mayor’s Charter to assist 
in optimising the use of local labour, suppliers in the development of the 

Page 12



5

schemes.  Furthermore, on completion of the homes the Council will receive the 
additional benefit of circa £42,000 per annum in Council Tax receipts and circa 
£210,000 in New Homes Bonus monies.  

2.0 The Offer

2.1 Terms have been agreed in principle, including the anticipated gross capital 
receipt,  full details of which are set out in the Part II report, however the net 
capital receipt to the Council on release of the covenant and reservation 
restrictions would be £260,700 for the two sites.

2.2 The Strategic Director People, the Lead Member for Adult Services and the 
Lead Member for Housing support the proposal put forward by Great Places 
and advise that the overall effect would be a cost reduction for the service 
provision.

3.0 Title Issues

3.1 As previously mentioned, the site at Crompton Street is subject to a restrictive 
covenant. Full details of which are in the accompanying Part II report.

4.0 Loss of Public Open Space

4.1 The Crompton St site was occupied by a former Drill Hall which was demolished 
in the 1990s due to vandalism/fire damage. The land has been used as informal 
open space for a number of years, however it is not part of the Council’s 
Greenspace Strategy, due to the proximity of other greenspace assets nearby. 

4.2 In accordance with legislation the intention to dispose of an area classed as 
open space has been publicised in a newspaper circulating in the area. Notices 
for both the Crompton Street site and a smaller site on Holyoake Road were 
published in the Manchester Weekly News in October 2019. In response, a 
petition was submitted with approximately 450 signatures objecting to the 
disposal and development of the Holyoake Road site and a total of 17 
representations were received for the Crompton Street site. The representations 
detailed the reasons for objection to the disposals and the schemes which 
included the loss of greenspace, flooding, highway safety/parking, anti-social 
behaviour and noise and air pollution.

4.3 There were 3 representations in support for the schemes and expressing the 
need for the supported housing facilities as described above.

4.4 Following further consultation with the Ward Members and the Lead Members 
for Housing and Adult Services, together with consideration of technical data 

Page 13



6

from Great Places, the Holyoake Road site was removed from the mix and 
replaced with the Highfield Road site. In terms of addressing the representations 
made for the Crompton Street site, the site is not within the Councils 
Greenspace Strategy SPD and is classed as informal open space. Oakwood 
Park and Whittle Street play area are the nearest formal greenspaces available 
which are 177 meters and 700 meters away from the Crompton Street site. 

4.5 The proposals will need to secure planning permission for both supported 
housing schemes and the disposal of the sites is subject to that consent being 
forthcoming. Great Places will need to provide justification that their scheme is 
in line with planning policy and the requirements of any statutory consultations. 

4.6 It should be noted that the concerns raised by the community during the 
consultation process can be considered and potentially mitigated as part of the 
planning process and therefore it is recommended that approval is given to 
dispose of the open space. 

4.7 Additionally Great Places has however allowed for a contribution of circa 
£50,000 towards the loss of the open space as part of their s.106 obligations 
which is in line with planning policy and can go towards improving local facilities.

5.0 Summary

5.1 The two scheme proposals are part of Salford’s strategic approach to deliver 
improvements in service quality, improved customer experience and journey, 
providing care closer to home in schemes integrated into the local community 
and to deliver value for money in the provision of housing and care solutions in 
Salford.  The Strategic Director People, the Lead Member for Adult Services 
and the Lead Member for Housing support the proposal put forward by Great 
Places and advise that the overall effect would be an estimated cost reduction 
for the service provision.  There is an additional benefit of delivering much 
needed 12 social rented homes. Furthermore, the scheme will result in a net 
capital receipt of £260,700, Council Tax income of £42,000 per annum and 
£210,000 new homes bonus monies.  

5.2 In terms of addressing the representations made on the advertising of loss of 
public open space for the Crompton Street site, the site is not within the 
Council’s Greenspace Strategy SPD and is classed as informal open space. 
Oakwood Park and Whittle Street play area are the nearest formal Greenspaces 
available which are 177 meters and 700 meters away from the Crompton Street 
site. 

5.3 It is recommended that the Council proceeds with the land disposal of both sites, 
one of which is classed as open space, subject to securing the release of the 

Page 14



7

restrictive covenant and rights at Crompton Street, Walkden and Great Places 
securing planning permission of both sites. 

5.4 Officers are of the opinion that the terms agreed satisfy best value obligations. 
Furthermore, the development will assist in developing this very much needed 
supported housing enabling the two client groups to be independent and most 
importantly close to their families. In addition, 12no units will be developed as 
affordable housing on a social rent basis, of which Derive will have an option to 
acquire 5no units.

Ward Councillor Consultation:

The Ward Councillors have been informed throughout the process. 

The Walkden South Councillors made representation on behalf of the residents when 
the Crompton Street and Holyoake Road proposals went out for consultation and were 
not supportive of the proposals. Comments were again sought on the revised 
proposals set out in this report and again there was no support for the proposal. Further 
comments were sought in advance of this report and to date no comments have been 
forthcoming.

The Little Hulton Councillors have also been informed throughout the process and are 
generally supportive of the scheme subject to proper resident consultation throughout. 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 
Regeneration
Great 8 - Housing 
Great 8 - Economic Development
Integrated Care
Learning Disability

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:
There are no equality impact issues arising directly as a consequence of this report.  

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low  

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:   
Michelle Brice – Solicitor – Shared Legal Services: 0161 219 6303.
There are no legal implications (property) arising from the contents of this report.

Page 15



8

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 
Alex Archer – Finance Manager: 0161 778 0498
A net capital receipt to the Council on release of the covenant and reservation 
restrictions would be £260,700 for the two sites.  

Full comments are within the Part II Report.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 
Lauren Armstrong – Solicitor (Commercial Legal): 0161 234 4178
Details are provided in the Part II report.

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 
There are no HR implications arising from this proposal.

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 
Michael Hemingway - Principal Officer - Climate Change: 0161 793 3209.
Great Places are a carbon literate organisation. The scheme when delivered will 
reduce the need for residents as well as family and friends to travel. Other climate 
change implications will be addressed as part of the planning application.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:
Place - Regeneration, Planning.
Housing Strategy and Enabling Social Integrated Commissioning

CONTACT OFFICER: Bhav Chauhan TEL NO: 779 6101 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  Walkden and Little Hulton

Page 16



180

Pos
ts

97.5m

TCB

12

15

20
0

198

109

14

11

MS

Kenyon Lodge
(Nursing Home)

Shelter

99

Club

2

PH

91

Car

Greenheys

162

4

Park

95

8

93

Youth

2

100.0m

Sub Sta

El

Mast

LB

21

27

45

33

7

35

5

21

23

3

Hall

62

C
A

P
T

A
IN

 F
O

LD
 R

O
A

D

49

H
IG

H
F

IE
L

D

48

HQ

36

FS

57

Works

R
O

A
D

ATC

FS

Property
Information Section

Salford Civic Centre
Chorley Road

Salford
M27 5AS

Plan Ref:
Scale @ A4:
Date:
OS Map Ref:
Area:

1:1250
10/03/2020
SD7104SE

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100019737 2020

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



14

1

11

23

S
P

R
IN

G
 C

L
O

U
G

H
 D

R
IV

E

15

42

257

40

G
R

U
N

D
Y

 S
T

R
E

E
T

26
9

C
R

O
S

B
Y

 A
V

E
N

U
E

29
5

24

12

El Sub Sta

1

33

2

29
9

ARTHUR STREET

67

49
35

810

2

323

2

4

307

1

9

11

SPRING CLOUGH AVENUE
255

15

13

1

31

CROMPTON STREET

M
A

R
S

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T

9

29
7

6 5
4 7

3

28
3

12

2

25
9

23

28

1

303

305

19

30
1

9a

O
LD

 C
LO

U
G

H
 LA

N
E

14
2

68

82
28

58

44

3

80
56

325

1

1

40

254

TCB

MANCHESTER ROAD

Petal Court

244

CR

Ward Bdy

260

1-24
25-48

49-72

304

89.0m

Property
Information Section

Salford Civic Centre
Chorley Road

Salford
M27 5AS

Plan Ref:
Scale @ A4:
Date:
OS Map Ref:
Area:

1:1250
10/03/2020
SD7402NE

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100019737 2020

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1 Open to the Public ITEM NO.

JOINT REPORT OF:
THE STRATEGIC DIRECTORS OF PEOPLE AND PLACE

TO THE CITY MAYOR’S PROPERTY AND REGENERATION MEETING 
24TH AUGUST 2020

TITLE: THE BEVAN INTERMEDIATE CARE UNIT (IMCU), STOTT LANE, 
SALFORD

RECOMMENDATIONS:
 
It is recommended that the City Mayor:

Note and approve the proposals detailed below on the terms as set out in the body of 
this report and on the detailed terms set out in an accompanying Part 2 report 
elsewhere on the agenda.

1. In the Part 2 section of this report the approval of a full contract award to appoint 
the preferred contractor (Galliford Try Construction) to deliver the IMCU on the 
terms outlined. 

2. Note the intention to reclaim from the project a one-off payment of £206,640 
representing the permanent loss of 48 car parking spaces (£172,800) and 94 
temporary car parking spaces (£33,840) to facilitate the IMCU.

3. Note that the total cost estimate to deliver the IMCU as detailed in the Part 2 report

4. Delegate expenditure of additional sums on the project, up to the £10.4million 
budget estimate to the Strategic Director of People/Procurement Board in 
accordance with governance limits.

5. Approve the provisionally agreed Heads of Terms for the lease of the Intermediate 
Care Unit to Salford Royal Foundation Trust (SRFT)/Northern Care Alliance (NCA) 
on the basis that the costs of capital borrowing costs for the project are recovered 
via integrated fund arrangements over the lease term of 25 years.

6. Approve the provisionally agreed Heads of Terms allowing SRFT/NCA to install a 
decked car park on the south side of the Stott Lane car park.

7. Authorise the Shared Legal Service to complete all necessary documentation and 
to take all steps which are required to give effect to the above recommendations.

Page 21

Agenda Item 4b



2

8. Note the contents of this report and the progress being made to deliver the IMCU 
project and that the delivery of the IMCU will be the subject of regular update 
reports to the City Mayor.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

The report details the progress that has been made to deliver the IMCU on Stott Lane.
This report and the recommendation to appoint a preferred contractor should have 
been considered in March 2020; however due to the impact of Covid 19 it was 
impractical to make the award at that time.

The report details the background to this matter, the previous approvals that have 
taken place and the approvals that are now needed for the project to move forward on 
site.

The key issues detailed relate to:

 The appointment of a main contractor following a tender process;
 The lease arrangement of the IMCU to SRFT and associated matters; and
 The lease of part of the existing Stott Lane car park to SRFT for a decked car park.

The Part 2 report gives an updated total estimated cost for delivering the IMCU and 
confirms that the proposals outlined and recommendations for approval are within the 
cost limits that were approved by the City Mayor when the matter was first considered 
and the principle of delivering an IMCU was approved.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: Cabinet report dated 23rd September 2019

KEY DECISION: Yes
ON FORWARD LOOK:  Yes 

DETAILS:

1.0 Background

1.1 On 1st July 2017 the operation of The Limes Intermediate Care (IMC) Unit 
transferred to Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust and it was agreed that a 
model with full nursing bed base, was required to deliver Intermediate Care 
outcomes. It was identified that The Limes was not established to deliver the 
nursing care specified and major structural improvements to the building were 
required. The need and model for an Intermediate Care (IMC) Unit in Salford, 
which delivers nursing bed capacity fit for the future was agreed by Salford 
Together partners at the Integrated Care Joint Commissioning Committee (ICJC) 
in autumn 2017. 

Page 22



3

1.2 An options appraisal was completed in September 2017, to compare the cost of 
developing the current Limes building to be fit for nursing care versus a new IMC 
Unit build, which brought together The Limes with Barton Brook nursing beds. 
The original business case developed by SRFT showed that developing the IMC 
Unit was a cheaper option than the recurrent investment that would be required 
in The Limes and therefor the preferred option was to build a new IMC Unit on 
Stott Lane funded through loan arrangements. 

1.3 The new IMC Unit will: 

 improve service user outcomes through faster improvements in functional 
status allowing more people to return home sooner; 

 improve quality of care through reduced variation in delivery models currently 
operating across multiple sites;

 provide increased patient access to nursing and therapy; 
 improve safety through provision of recommended staffing levels, clinical 

monitoring, medicine safety, reduced handoffs and improved transitions;
 improve whole system flow increasing efficiency of the service; and
 improve patient experience through the above benefits and through a 

purposefully designed IMC Unit, offering an environment, layout and space 
which enables privacy and dignity to be maintained, in addition to optimum 
care.  

1.4 The new IMC Unit is sufficiently close to the acute site to access SRFT support 
facilities but separated enough from the SRFT site so the beds will remain as         
Intermediate Care capacity only, even during peak periods. 

1.5 The capital cost of the preferred option was estimated at a maximum of 
£10.4million which would be met by Council borrowing funded through 
repayments via integrated fund arrangements, with the Council receiving annual 
repayments to cover the full cost of borrowing (i.e. loan repayments and interest) 
over the 25 year lease term.  This will be cost neutral from a Council perspective 
in terms of borrowing.

1.6   The proposal will allow the release of the Council’s site at The Limes where
        there is a proposal for the development of an Extra Care facility in conjunction
        with adjoining land. 

1.7 The City Council, on 27th June 2018, approved, in principle, the development of 
the proposed IMCU by the Council with a proposed lease agreement to SRFT 
linked to the Council recovering the borrowing costs of the development and any         
associated costs.  Funding of £182,748 (Exc VAT) enabling the proposals for the 
IMCU to be taken forward to RIBA stage 2 level.  Further funding was allocated 
as works have progressed to RIBA Stage 3 level and the total amount expended 
to date amounts to £262,512 (Exc VAT).  Work was undertaken to take the design 
proposals forward and a planning application for the IMCU was submitted on 
6th June 2019. A positive decision on the application was received on 
5th December 2019. 

1.8   Artists images of the new Intermediate Care Unit are shown below.   

Page 23



4

1.9 After receiving consent from Cabinet to proceed to tender in September 2019,   
documents were sent out to the market and prices were returned in February   
2020.

Page 24



5

2.0 Information 

2.1 Following Cabinet approval on 23rd September 2019, the Project Team prepared 
a pack of information to be sent out to tender. This process was overseen by 
Salford’s Procurement Team. The contractor shortlist was determined via use of 
the Procure North West framework. Four contractors were invited to tender, with 
documents issued out by the Council via The Chest E-Tendering Portal. Three 
submissions were returned in February 2020 and tenders were assessed on a 
60/40 Cost/Quality Basis.

2.2 The Three submissions were from

1. Galliford Try Construction 
2. Eric Wright Construction 
3. Graham Construction 

Details of the tender prices submitted and quality scoring will be set out within the 
Part 2 report

Galliford Try were selected as preferred bidder at this stage with more details 
being provided in the Part 2 report.

2.3 The Financial assessment was undertaken by the Council’s appointed Cost 
Consultant, who confirmed that the bid from Galliford Try Construction was the 
most economically advantageous.

2.4 Galliford Try Construction, as preferred bidder, were invited to an interview which 
was held at Salford Royal Hospital on 25th February 2020. At this meeting, GTC 
gave a more in-depth overview of their social value offering. This gave more 
assurance regarding their proposals and it was agreed that this was to be 
developed further with the Council as part of their appointment.  That further 
engagement has now taken place with Councils skills and work team and an 
agreed set out KPIs and outcomes will be appended to the contract between the 
Council and Galliford Try.

2.5 The preferred contractor has submitted a programme which shows a 50 week 
construction period on site. If works can commence in September 2020 then 
completion will take around one calendar year.

3.0  Proposed IMCU and decked car park Lease Terms – Council to SRFT/NCA

3.1 IMCU Lease - Detailed discussion has taken place with SRFT/NCA with regard 
to the lease arrangements for the IMCU and the following terms have been 
provisionally agreed. Ideally this will be legally documented and a binding 
agreement for lease entered into, conditional on completion of the construction 
works, before the Council enters into the construction contract with Galliford Try.

Page 25



6

The main elements of the lease terms are detailed below:

Parties: Salford City Council (SCC - Landlord) and Salford Royal NHS 
Foundation Trust/Northern Care Alliance (SRFT/NCA - Tenant)

Demise: Premises to be known as The Bevan Intermediate Care Unit, 
situated off Stott Lane, Salford M6 8HD, including adjacent land 
comprising service yard, enclosed garden, landscaping as 
shown edged red on the attached plan, together with vehicular 
access rights to the demised area from Stott Lane identified 
shaded yellow and pedestrian access rights identified shaded 
blue on the attached Plan 1. 

Term: 25 years fixed term, with the ability to assign only as part of any 
pooled budget arrangement change.

Use: Non-Residential Health facilities (Use Class D1) comprising an 
Intermediate Care Unit and ancillary health services.

Rent: £595,000 per annum. Rent to be based on the sum of the 
annuity cost of borrowing for the capital build project, a ground 
rent for the site based on loss of income from parking provision 
and a service charge for maintenance of access routes, as set 
out below: 
Annuity loan repayment element amounts to £580,000 per 
annum over the term. This reflects a capital build sum of £10.4M 
and current borrowing rates. It will change if final costs/rates 
alter.
Ground rent element amounts to £15,000 per annum, to be 
subject to 5 yearly rent reviews in line with RPI. 
Service charge payment of £1,000 per annum, to cover the 
proportion of the maintenance costs of access to the facility.

Repairing 
Obligations:

The lease is offered on full repairing and insuring terms. The 
Tenant shall maintain the interior and exterior of the building, 
together with the Landlord’s fixtures, fittings and decoration, and 
areas of the grounds within the red edged lease boundary. 

Outgoings: The rent is exclusive of business rates. The Tenant shall be 
responsible for all services for the demised area including utility 
costs, statutory compliance, caretaking, repairs and 
maintenance to the premises and maintenance of the hard and 
soft landscaping within the demised area.   

Insurance: The Landlord will insure the building under its existing block 
policy and recharge the Tenant the premium. The Tenant will be 
responsible for the insurance of its fixtures and fittings, third 
party and public liability and provide the Landlord with proof of 
insurance on demand.

Other matters: 
Compensation – 
Additional 
payments 

As a number of car parking spaces will be lost from use during 
the construction period and on a permanent basis following the 
completion of the IMCU, the values associated with that loss will 
be recovered from the IMCU project through a one off charge 
amounting to £206,640.This comprises £172,800 for the 
permanent loss of 48 spaces and £33,840 for the temporary loss 
of 94 spaces.

Page 26



7

3.2 Decked Car park lease 

A number of planning conditions relating to car parking provision are attached to 
the new ARC Trauma unit and the IMCU. Whilst SRFT have applied to vary those 
conditions, the provision of the decked car park provides an important role in the 
delivery of additional spaces to support the new developments. SRFT are also 
supporting the extension of the residents’ car parking scheme in the area and this 
is the subject of ongoing discussions with them with regard to implementation.

          
Detailed discussion has taken place with SRFT with regard to the lease 
arrangements for a decked car park they would like to install on the South side of 
the Stott Lane car park. This will increase the capacity on that side of the car park 
from 198 spaces to around 410 spaces.  Originally SRFT hoped that SCC could 
cover the estimated capital costs of the car park and that SRFT/NCA could enter 
into a repayment arrangement with the Council as per the IMCU building. This 
was not acceptable to the Council and SRFT/NCA have now made arrangements 
to lease the decked car park and require consent from the Council to site the 
decked car park on the Council’s land. The following terms have been 
provisionally agreed to facilitate this proposal.  For the avoidance of doubt this is 
a separate agreement to the IMCU arrangements and there are no cost 
implications for the pooled budget.

The main elements of the lease terms are detailed below:

Parties: As IMCU lease
Demise: South surface car park, situated off Stott Lane, Salford M6 8HD, 

together with vehicular access rights to the demised area from 
Stott Lane and pedestrian access rights.

Term: 50 years fixed term subject to a mutual break clause after 25 
years exercisable on either party giving 6 months’ notice.

Use: Erection of a deck car park and alterations to layout of existing 
ground floor car park as approved under planning application 
reference 19/74402/FUL.

Rent: £64,000 per annum plus VAT. (This based on the sum of the 
169 parking permits previously held by SRFT on the South 
surface car park together with a ground rent for the right to erect 
the deck structure on the site)

Reviews: Rent to be subject to 5 yearly rent reviews in line with RPI.
Service charge: A service charge payment of £1,000 per annum, to cover a 

proportion of the maintenance costs of the access routes to the 
facility.

Repairing 
Obligations:

The lease is offered on full repairing and insuring terms. The 
Tenant shall maintain the interior and exterior of the structure, 
together with the fixtures, fittings and decoration, and areas of 
the grounds within the red edged lease boundary, in good and 
substantial repair and condition. On vacation, the Tenant shall 
remove the structure and reinstate the surface car park UNLESS 
it is agreed between the parties that the structure can be 
retained on site in which case the Tenant will deliver up the 
Demised area in good and substantial repair, including internal 

Page 27



8

and external decoration. 
The Landlord will be responsible for maintenance of the access 
routes identified shaded yellow and blue on the lease plan.      
The Tenant shall not make any structural alterations or additions 
to the property. Non-structural alterations are permissible, 
subject to obtaining Landlord’s Consent and any necessary 
statutory approvals.

Outgoings: The rent is exclusive of business rates. As the premises are a 
new-build and will not have previously been separately 
assessed for business rates a new rating assessment will be 
required on completion and the Tenant will be liable for Business 
Rates. 
The Tenant shall be responsible for all services for the demised 
area including utility costs, statutory compliance, caretaking, 
repairs and maintenance to the premises and maintenance of 
the hard and soft landscaping within the demised area.   

Insurance: The Tenant will be responsible for the insurance of the structure 
and its fixtures and fittings, third party and public liability and 
provide the Landlord with proof of insurance on demand.

Alienation: Assignment, of the whole or in part, of the demise is not 
permitted, other than the grant of parking permits for individual 
spaces to authorised users.

Costs: Each party to bear its own costs in completing the legal 
agreement.   

Other conditions: The parties will agree the number of disabled spaces that will be 
provided within the leased area.
The cost of repair or replacement of the access route surface, 
street furniture and site infrastructure required as a result of 
damage by construction vehicle traffic directly attributable to the 
contract to be recoverable from the Tenant.
The Tenant shall permit the Landlord to inspect the property for 
the purpose of ensuring the terms and conditions of the lease 
are being adhered to.    

      The Tenant shall be entitled to erect appropriate signage on the 
structure and on the boundary of the demised area, subject to 
obtaining Landlord’s Consent to the locations and any 
necessary planning consent.
Any other conditions normally incorporated by the City Council 
in an agreement of this type.  

Delivery 
Timescales:   

It is hoped that work can commence on site in September 2020 
with a 16-18 week contract period to deliver the decked car park.

4.0 Financial Update 

4.1 It is expected that the final cost of the IMCU will be less than the £10.4million as 
originally approved. SCC and SRFT/NCA and respective advisors have 
discussed at length the issue of VAT in relation to the project. While VAT recovery 
is not normally a consideration for the council, the inter-partner transaction 
potentially creates an irrecoverable VAT issue for SRFT which would be borne 

Page 28



9

within the integrated fund arrangements. It is considered that the scheme could 
be zero-rated for VAT, however that requires approval by HMRC. The application 
has been made but a decision will not be made for some time. On that basis the 
report is presented on the basis that VAT is payable. If that changes following a 
positive HMRC decision then a substantial saving will be made that will be 
reflected in a lower annual lease payment for the IMCU.

 
4.2 The estimated cost to deliver the project will be detailed in the Part 2 report.

4.3 The Council and SRFT team overseeing the delivery of the project will continue 
to focus on the cost elements of the project and the Council have appointed a 
specialist cost management consultant to oversee the delivery of works on site 
and all payments associated with the project. This is an approach already in use 
at New Bailey and Exchange Greengate where it has proved invaluable.

4.4 As requirements for additional expenditure may arise during the construction            
period, the report recommends that the City Mayor delegates expenditure of   
additional payments on the project, up to the £10.4million budget estimate, to the 
Strategic Director of People/Procurement Board in accordance with           
governance limits.

4.5  Clarification was sought at briefing on Galliford Try’s financial standing in the 
current market conditions. This will be addressed in the Part 2 report but a basis 
to move forward has been provisionally agreed.

5.0 Conclusion 
 
5.1 Approval to the recommendations in this report will allow the IMCU project to be 

progressed and a contract award to be made to the preferred construction 
partner. It is expected that a start on site will be made in September with a 52 
week contract period

5.2 Subject to approval the decked car park will also be on site in September with a 
16-18 week delivery period.

5.3 As detailed in the report the final cost of the project is as yet uncertain due to the 
outstanding VAT issue, and although a firm price has now been agreed with a 
contractor to deliver the construction element, there are construction risks which 
still sit with the Council, particularly around ground conditions. It is estimated 
however that the final costs will be within the budgeted £10.4million. The 
suggested regular update reports to the City Mayor will include details on the 
current financial position.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

 Adult Social Care
 Integrated Care

Page 29



10

 Integrated Commissioning 
 Personalisation

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:   Equality-related risks will 
be assessed throughout the development of this proposal

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Low 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323 and David 
Green, Head of Regeneration tel. 234 3107

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 
execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract 
may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. CSO’s stipulate that 
where a suitable framework exists, this must be used unless there is an auditable 
reason not to do so. In addition, the PCR require that contracting authorities treat 
candidates equally and in a non-discriminatory way and act in a transparent manner, 
failing which the award of a contract may be subject to legal challenge. 

The report sets out the Council’s intention to award the contract to Galliford Try 
Construction following a tender exercise which is outlined within the body of the report, 
and which is compliant with the requirements of CSO’s and public procurement 
legislation . In following the procedures, any potential challenge to the award of a 
contract to a provider from an aggrieved provider will be significantly reduced, 
assuming always that the tender exercise carried out has been an open and fair one, 
and undertaken in accordance with the tender documents published to set out the 
procedure and process involved, the scoring and evaluation of bids, including any 
clarification issues.

Undertaking the tender exercise in the recommendation will also give some comfort to 
the Council in ensuring that value for money is being obtained and periodically tested, 
with competition maintained.  

With regard to the proposed grant of the leases, the proposed lease terms are a 
commercial matter and in respect of which the Council has been professionally 
advised. There are no adverse legal implications with regards to the grant of the leases 
provided the proposed disposals of the two sites / properties constitute the best 
consideration reasonably obtainable in order to satisfy the requirements of Section 123

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Chris Hesketh x 2668

It is intended that the construction of the IMCU carries no risk to the Council. In order 
to achieve this objective, SRFT, CCG and Council officers will devise an agreement 
that:

Page 30



11

 Guarantees, with appropriate security, the reimbursement of the Council’s 
borrowing costs;

 Allocates the risk of any variance in running or lifecycle costs; 
 Allocates the risk of damage/loss to the building (this risk will be negligible provided 

the arrangement fits in with existing insurance arrangements).

The means of reimbursement of the Council’s outlay will be determined in order to 
mitigate any risks to the Council from owning the asset and to secure the most 
advantageous VAT position for the integrated fund. 

In all cases, the reimbursement will be calculated to match and offset borrowing costs 
over the life of the loan.

Advice on the VAT position was supplied by Ernst Young to SRFT and by PwC to the 
Council. The proposed solution was “zero-rating” of the project on the basis of the 
residential use of the asset. However, HMRC agreement with the proposed form of the 
transaction is not a foregone conclusion. An application has made to HMRC and a 
determination from HMRC is now awaited to confirm the VAT position. 

As noted in the report, the allocation of £10.4million (the original budget estimate) is at 
full costs, including VAT. It is anticipated that successful resolution of the VAT issues 
will bring down the overall cost.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Deborah Derbyshire x6244

The project was procured through the utilisation of established Framework Agreements 
for both the consultancy and construction.  

The Consultant framework established by SBS was the chosen route to appoint the 
consultant due this having the option to direct award through the framework with an 
approved provider.

The Construction of the property was procured using a compliant OJEU framework 
that has been established by Procure Northwest and was undertaken by using the Mini 
Competition process.

HR IMPLICATIONS: None

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  Mike Hemingway
The new intermediate care building will replace the inefficient Limes building.  The 
new building is targeting BREEAM very good) by achieving a 20% reduction in CO2 
emissions, over and about the requirements of Part L of the building regulations. This 
saving has been made through the contributions of all of the measures below, to 
provide a building that is very energy efficient and far exceeds the requirements of 
Approved Document L.

Page 31



12

 Fabric U-values The proposed building fabric U-values far exceed the minimum 
requirements of part L of the building regulations, ensuring that the building 
envelope requires the minimum amount of energy to heat.

 Solar PV The proposed building incorporates a significant roof mounted array of 
90 solar voltaic panels, to contribute to the buildings electrical load and reduce 
the amount of electricity from fossil fuels.

 Combined Heat and Power plant The proposed building incorporates a 
combined heat and power plant to contribute to the buildings electrical load whilst 
providing free low grade heat to contribute to the buildings heating and hot water 
loads.

 Heat recovery ventilation The building is provided with full mechanical 
ventilation which incorporates heat recovery so that waste heat from the exhaust 
air is used to heat up incoming fresh air.

 LED Lighting Throughout the proposed building we have utilised high efficiency 
LED lighting, for general, emergency and clinical lighting applications.

The fabric first approach taken is very much in line with the GM 5 Year Environment 
Plan.

In addition the EV chargers currently in the surface carpark will be reinstalled in the 
new multi storey car-park.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  None 

CONTACT OFFICER:  Peter Openshaw x 3050

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Weaste, but Citywide implications.

Page 32



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972

Name of Report: 

Land at Crompton Street, Walkden & 
Highfield Road, Little Hulton

Committee: 

The Property & Regeneration Briefing 
Date: 24th August 2020

Category of exemption applied: Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial 
or business affairs of any particular person (including the Authority holding that 
information)

Public Interest Test Questionnaire
This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality.

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public 
debate about current issues?

No

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions? 

No

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff?

No

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers? 

No

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives? 

No

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)  

No

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-
making or examples of malpractice?

No

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact 
occurred?

No

Page 33

Agenda Item 6a



Page 34



FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information?

Yes

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information? 

Yes

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation?

No

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the 
public useful information? 

No

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals 
at risk? 

No

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would 
benefit more from information being withheld? 

 

No

Justification of decision
(Please provide explicit reasoning)

The report details the commercially sensitive terms and conditions that are agreed for 
a transaction that is not yet legally completed and therefore it is not appropriate at 
this time to release the information. Non-sensitive information has been provided in 
the associated Part 1 report to ensure transparency on the decision being taken.

Other documents attached? No

Name and Title: Bhav Chauhan, Principal Surveyor

Date: 4th August 2020.

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972

Name of Report: 

Salford Royal Intermediate Care Unit 
(IMCU)

Committee: 

The Property & Regeneration Briefing 
Date: 24th August 2020

Category of exemption applied: Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial 
or business affairs of any particular person (including the Authority holding that 
information)

Public Interest Test Questionnaire
This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality.

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public 
debate about current issues?

No

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions? 

No

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff?

No

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers? 

No

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives? 

No

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)  

No

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-
making or examples of malpractice?

No

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact 
occurred?

No

Page 37

Agenda Item 6b



FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information?

Yes

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information? 

Yes

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation?

No

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the 
public useful information? 

No

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals 
at risk? 

No

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would 
benefit more from information being withheld? 

 

No

Justification of decision
(Please provide explicit reasoning)

The report details the commercially sensitive terms and conditions that are agreed for 
a transaction that is not yet legally completed and therefore it is not appropriate at 
this time to release the information. Non-sensitive information has been provided in 
the associated Part 1 report to ensure transparency on the decision being taken.

Other documents attached? No

Name and Title: Peter Openshaw, Assistant Director Environment and Community
Safety

Date: 12th August 2020.

Page 38


	Agenda
	3a DFT and TfGM Emergency Active Travel Funds
	4a Land at Crompton Street, Walkden and Highfield Road, Little Hulton
	04aii Appendix A1 CM
	04aiii Appendix A2 CM

	4b Salford Royal The Bevan Intermediate Care Unit (IMCU)
	6a Land at Crompton Street, Walkden and Highfield Road, Little Hulton
	6b Salford Royal The Bevan Intermediate Care Unit (IMCU)

